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Directors’ Report 
Your Directors present their report on the Group for the Year Ended 30 June 2016. 

Directors 

The names of the Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are set out below.  
Directors were in office for the entire period unless otherwise stated. 

Mr Mark Hohnen Non-Executive Chairman (appointed 26 April 2016) 

Dr Marat Abzalov Executive Director – Geology 

Mr Evan Cranston Corporate Director 

Mr Grant Davey Executive Director (appointed 12 January 2016) 

Mr Peter Williams Non-Executive Director 

Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove Non-Executive Director (resigned 12 January 2016) 

Information on Current Directors 

Mr Mark Hohnen Non-Executive Chairman 
Appointed 26 April 2016 

Mr Hohnen has been involved in the mineral business since the late 1970s and has had extensive 
international business experience in a wide range of industries including mining and exploration, 
property, investment, software and agriculture. He is an experienced director having held a number of 
directorships in both public and private companies.   

Currently Mr. Hohnen is a Board member of Swakop Uranium, the owner of the Husab uranium project.  
Husab is the world’s second largest uranium operation in terms of production with construction of a 15 
mlbs uranium per annum mine and treatment plant nearing completion. 

Mr. Hohnen was founding Executive Chairman of Kalahari Resources Plc, a company founded in 2005 to 
explore for uranium and base metals in Namibia. Kalahari (KAH) was listed on AIM in March 2006 with a 
market capitalisation of Stg£15 million.  In 2011, Kalahari Resources Plc was valued at Stg£750 million 
and was ultimately the subject of a corporate transaction in 2012 valued at $US2.2 billion. Other than 
Boss Resources Limited, over the past three years Mr Hohnen has not held any directorships with ASX 
listed companies. 

Mr Hohnen holds a relevant interest in 16,666,667 shares and 18,000,000 performance rights in the 
Company that were acquired since the end of the financial year. 
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Dr Marat Abzalov Executive Director - Geology 
Appointed 2 April 2014 

Dr Abzalov has managed and consulted on a wide range of mining projects including government run 
projects, technical reviews and detailed studies from scoping to bankable feasibility.  He has a solid 
expertise in all aspects of ore body knowledge with an emphasis on geostatistical resource estimation, 
samples quality assurance / control and geological / mathematical 3D modelling.  His exploration 
experience includes management and technical support to exploration activities in both brownfields and 
greenfields projects.  In brownfields exploration, using advance 3D visualisation of geological data and 
applying new 3D modelling and visualisation methodologies, Dr Abzalov built a predictive exploration 
model of the Olympic Dam deposit which led to the discovery of significant new resources in 2003.  He 
also built a predictive exploration model of Cliff's Ni-S brownfields project in Western Australia which led 
to the discovery of a high grade zone turning the deposit to an economically viable mining project.  In 
greenfields exploration, he has managed the search programs for deep or covered deposits using 
innovative targeting tools, including specialised geochemical datasets and applying quality 3D geological 
interpretation and visualisation.  His geological analysis and exploration targeting has led to the 
generation of highly prospective exploration projects in Far East Russia, the Stans and Eastern Europe.   

Other than Boss Resources Limited, over the past three years Dr Abzalov has not held any directorships 
with ASX listed companies. 

Dr Abzalov holds a relevant interest in 3,058,698 shares and 9,999,999 performance rights in the 
Company. 

Mr Evan Cranston Corporate Director 
Appointed 2 May 2012  

Mr Cranston is a corporate lawyer specialising in corporate and mining law.  He holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce and Bachelor of Laws from the University of Western Australia and was admitted as a 
barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Western Australia. Mr Cranston has broad experience in 
the areas of capital raisings, initial public offerings, tenement acquisition agreements, mineral rights 
agreements, joint ventures, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, the ASX listing rules and 
the Corporations Act. 

Mr Cranston is currently a non-executive director of ASX listed companies Attila Resources Limited, 
Carbine Resources Limited, Clancy Resources Limited and Primary Gold Limited. Mr Cranston was a 
non-executive director of Cradle Resources Limited to 8 May 2016. 

Mr Cranston holds a relevant interest in 6,666,667 shares in the Company. 

Mr Grant Davey Executive Director 
Appointed 12 January 2016 

Mr Davey is a mining engineer with over 20 years of senior management and operational experience in 
the construction and operation of gold, platinum and coal mines in Africa, Australia, South America and 
Russia.  More recently, he has been involved in venture capital investments in several exploration and 
mining projects and he has been instrumental in developing the Panda Hill niobium opportunity. Mr 
Davey’s uranium experience is associated with mining uranium as a byproduct from the deep level gold 
mines in South Africa.  Grant was responsible for the Vaal Reefs South Uranium plant between 2005 and 
2008 when it produced up to 6 million pounds of uranium per year and was one of the largest uranium 
producers in the southern hemisphere at the time. Mr Davey is a non-executive director of Graphex 
Mining Ltd and was Managing Director of Cradle Resources Limited to 10 November 2015. 

Mr Davey holds a relevant interest in 10,483,333 shares in the Company and is a director of Wattle 
Mining Pty Ltd which has a 20% interest in the Honeymoon Uranium Project. 
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Mr Peter Williams Non-executive Director 
Appointed 20 August 2013 

Mr Williams was formerly Chief Geophysicist and Manager of Geoscience Technology for WMC 
Resources.  He was one of the founding members of Independence Group Limited and developed high 
powered 3 component 3D TEM applications that lead to the discovery of over 75,000t of nickel at the 
Victor Long Nickel Mine in Kambalda.  Mr Williams also has extensive experience in West Africa where 
he was the vendor of Gryphon Minerals’ Banfora Gold Project, was involved in the project generation of 
Papillion’s Mali projects and was a founding director of Ampella Mining Ltd.  He was a co-founder of the 
International Resource Sector Intelligence company, Intierra and was a co-founder of the first dedicated 
hard rock mineral seismic company in the world, HiSeis. 

Other than Boss Resources Limited, over the past three years Mr Williams has not held any directorships 
with ASX listed companies. 

Mr Williams holds a relevant interest in 32,505,979 shares and 30,000,000 performance rights in the 
Company. 

Ms Oonagh Malone Company Secretary 
Appointed 30 November 2012 

Ms Malone is a principal of a corporate advisory firm which provides company secretarial and 
administrative services.  She has over 7 years’ experience in administrative support roles for listed 
exploration companies and is a member of the Governance Institute of Australia.  She is currently 
company secretary to ASX-listed companies Attila Resources Ltd, Carbine Resources Ltd, Primary Gold 
Limited and ZYL Limited.  She is a non-executive director of Attila Resources Ltd and ZYL Limited. 

Ms Malone holds a relevant interest in 980,000 shares of the Company. 

Meetings of Directors 

During the financial year, five meetings of Directors were held and five circular resolutions signed. 
Attendances by each Director during the year were as follows: 

 Directors’ Meetings 
 Number eligible 

to attend 
Number 
attended 

Dr Marat Abzalov 5 5 
Mr Evan Cranston 5 5 
Mr Grant Davey 2 2 
Mr Mark Hohnen 1 1 
Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove 3 2 
Mr Peter Williams 5 4 

Dividends Paid or Recommended  

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and no amount has been paid or declared by 
way of a dividend to the date of this report. 
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Principal Activities 

The principal activities of the Group during the financial year were the exploration of its recently acquired 
Honeymoon Uranium Mine in South Australia, and at its mineral exploration projects in Scandinavia and 
its gold interests in Burkina Faso (in joint venture with Gryphon Minerals Limited).   

Review of Operations  

Honeymoon Uranium Project, South Australia 

The Company acquired the Honeymoon Uranium Project in South Australia via the acquisition of 100% of 
the issued share capital of Uranium One Australia Pty Ltd (ASX: 1 December 2015).  Boss formed a 
special purpose vehicle with Wattle Mining Pty Ltd (Wattle) whereby Boss will own 80% and Wattle will 
own 20% of Uranium One Australia Pty Ltd, with Boss holding an option to acquire Wattle’s 20% post 
completion of a BFS. 

The Honeymoon Uranium Project (“Honeymoon” or the “Project”) is located in South Australia and is 
approximately 80km north-west from the town of Broken Hill near the SA / NSW border (Figure 1).  The 
Project consists of 1 granted Mining Lease, 5 granted Exploration Licenses, 8 Retention Leases and 2 
Miscellaneous Purposes Licenses.  The Honeymoon mining infrastructure is located on ML6109 and has 
produced some 335t of U3O8 from 2011 to 2012.  The large tenement package covers approximately 
2,595km2 and has excellent exploration potential to identify further resources. 

Since acquisition, the Company has completed extensive exploration, technical review, and metallurgical 
assessment of the project. 

Burkina Faso Gold Projects 

In March 2014, the Company entered into a joint venture with ASX-listed explorer, Gryphon Minerals Ltd, 
with respect to its Burkina Faso gold assets.  Gryphon met the 2 years of minimum expenditure to earn a 
51% interest in each Project in January 2016. 

Fennoscandian Ni-Cu Projects 

Due to the Company’s focus on the Honeymoon Project during the year, no material work was 
undertaken on the Company’s assets in Sweden and Norway. 

Operating Results 

The loss of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 after providing for income tax amounted to 
$2,675,940  (2015: loss of $1,101,779). 

Financial Position 

The net assets of the Group are $9,706,545 as at 30 June 2016 (2015: $6,295,015). 
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Significant Changes in State of Affairs 

- On 30 November 2015 (Completion), the Company completed the acquisition of the Honeymoon 
Uranium Project in South Australia. The assets of the Honeymoon project are all held by Boss 
Uranium Pty Ltd, (Boss Uranium) (formerly Uranium One Australia Pty Ltd) which was acquired on 
Completion of the Honeymoon acquisition. This acquisition occurred in several stages: 

- An initial site access fee of $200,000 was paid in April 2015, giving the Company the exclusive 
right to access the Honeymoon Project and conduct all its due diligence. 

- Boss Uranium repaid $9,521,666 owing to the vendor with funds borrowed from Boss Resources 
Limited. This repayment was fulfilled with the Company paying $2,521,666 (the Closing Amount) 
in cash to the vendor and issuing $7,000,000 in promissory notes to the vendor. 

- The Company paid $1 and agreed to contingent payments to the vendor upon successful 
recommissioning and operation of the Honeymoon Project: 

- Payment of the Closing Amount was guaranteed by Carbine Resources Limited (Carbine 
Guarantee).  In consideration for the Carbine Guarantee, on 1 September 2015 the Company 
issued 10 million unquoted share options exercisable at $0.02 each by 31 August 2018.  

- On 17 November 2015 the Company issued a total of 39,999,999 performance rights to Mr Peter 
Williams and Dr Marat Abzalov following shareholder approval on 28 November 2014. 

- On 20 January 2016, Gryphon Resources Ltd (Gryphon) acquired control and 51% shareholdings in 
Askia Gold Pty Ltd, Boss Minerals Pty Ltd, Boss Gold SARL and Boss Minerals SARL (Farmed out 
subsidiaries) pursuant to a Farm out agreement executed on 4 July 2014 

- Between October 2015 and December 2015, the Company issued 307,417,492 ordinary shares, 
pursuant to a rights issue and placements, at a share price of $0.015 per share to raise a total of 
$4,611,262 before costs. 

- On 7 June 2016, the Company issued 31,250,000 ordinary shares in a sophisticated investor 
placement at a share price of $0.04 per share to raise $1,250,000 before costs. 

- During the year, 28,500,000 unlisted share options expired without being exercised. 

After Balance Date Events 
On 25 August 2016, the Company issued 16,666,667 ordinary shares and 18,000,000 performance rights 
to the non-executive chairman, Mr Mark Hohnen, following shareholder approval on 16 August 2016. 

Other than disclosed above, between the end of the financial year and the date of this report there are no 
items, transactions or events of a material or unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to 
affect significantly, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial 
years that require disclosure. 

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies 

Further developments and business strategies are dependent upon the success of exploration work in 
Burkina Faso, Norway and Sweden and the Group’s ability to identify and acquire suitable 
complementary resource projects. 
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Environmental Issues 

The Company is aware of its environmental obligations with regards to its exploration activities and 
ensures that it complies with all regulations at all times. 

Options 

At the date of this report there are 10,000,000 unquoted share options and no quoted options on issue. 
These options were issued to Carbine Resources Limited (ASX: CRB) on 1 September 2015, vested on 
issue, have an exercise price of $0.02 each and have an expiry date of 31 August 2018. 

During the year, 28,500,000 unlisted options expired at the ends of their exercise period. 

Proceedings on Behalf of Company 

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Group or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Group 
for all or any part of these proceedings. 

The Group was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

Indemnifying Officers or Auditor 

In accordance with the constitution, except as may be prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001, every 
Officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the property of the Company against any liability 
incurred by him in his capacity as Officer, auditor or agent of the Company or any related corporation in 
respect of any act or omission whatsoever and howsoever occurring or in defending any proceedings, 
whether civil or criminal. The Company has agreed to pay a premium for Directors and Officers 
Insurance. 

Non-audit Services 

Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the year by the 
auditor are outlined in Note 24 to the financial statements. The Directors are satisfied that the provision of 
non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the 
Corporations Act 2001. 

The Directors are of the opinion that the services do not compromise the auditor’s independence as all 
non-audit services have been reviewed to ensure that they do not impact the impartiality and objectivity 
of the auditor and none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence 
as set out in Code of Conduct APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the 
Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board. 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

The auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2016, as required under section 
307C of the Corporations Act 2001, has been received and is included within the financial report. 
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REMUNERATION REPORT - AUDITED 

Remuneration policy 

In determining competitive remuneration rates, the Board seeks independent advice on local and 
international trends among comparative companies and industry generally.  

Independent advice may be obtained to confirm that executive remuneration is in line with market practice 
and is reasonable in the context of Australian executive reward practices. 

Performance-based remuneration 

The Board recognises that Boss Resources Limited operates in a global environment. To prosper in this 
environment it we must attract, motivate and retain key executive staff. 

The principles supporting the remuneration policy are that: 

- reward reflects the competitive global market in which the Company operates; 

- rewards to executives are linked to creating value for shareholders; 

- remuneration arrangements are equitable and facilitate the development of senior management 
across the Company; and 

- where appropriate, senior managers receive a component of their remuneration in equity to align 
their interests with those of the shareholders. 

- long term incentives are used to ensure that remuneration of key management personnel reflects 
the Group’s financial performance, with particular emphasis on the Group’s earnings and the 
consequence of the Group’s performance on shareholder wealth. 

Additional information for consideration of shareholder wealth 
This table summarises the earnings of the consolidated entity and other factors that are considered to 
affect shareholder wealth for the five years to 30 June 2016. 
 
 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
Loss after income tax attributable to 
shareholders ($) (2,675,940) (1,101,779) (2,125,287) (13,449,688) (13,836,528) 
Share price at financial year end ($) 0.041 0.0184 0.026 0.006 0.055 
Movement in share price for the year 
($) 0.0226 (0.076) 0.02 (0.049) (0.04) 
Total dividends declared (cents per 
share) - - - - - 
Returns of capital (cents per share) - - - - - 
Basic loss per share (cents per share) (0.36) (0.20) (0.44) (3.50) (4.64) 

Market Comparisons 

Consistent with attracting and retaining talented executives, the Board endorses the use of incentive and 
bonus payments. The Board continues to seek external advice to ensure reasonableness in 
remuneration scale and structure, and to compare the Company’s position with the external market. The 
impact and high cost of replacing senior employees and the competition for talented executives requires 
the Board to reward key employees when they deliver consistently high performance. 
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Board Remuneration  

The Board determines actual payments to Directors and reviews their remuneration annually based on 
independent external advice with regard to market practice, relativities, and the duties and 
accountabilities of directors. A review of Directors’ remuneration is conducted annually to benchmark 
overall remuneration including retirement benefits. 

Directors’ Fees 

Executive 

The objective of the Company’s executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is 
competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with 
achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders. 

The Board ensures that executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward corporate 
governance practices: 

- Competitiveness and reasonableness 

- Acceptability to shareholders 

- Performance linkage/alignment of executive compensation 

- Transparency 

- Capital management 

The Company has structured an executive framework that is market competitive and complementary to 
the reward strategy for the organisation. 

The Board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for Board members and 
executives of the Company is as follows: 

- The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for executive directors and executives, 
was developed and approved by the Board.  All executives receive a fee, part of which may be 
taken as superannuation, and from time to time, options.  Options issued to Directors are subject 
to approval by Shareholders.  The Board reviews executive packages regularly by reference to 
the Company’s performance, executives’ performance and comparable information from industry 
sectors and other listed companies in similar industries.  The Board may in its discretion establish 
a performance based bonus system to provide reward in addition to the base salary level to the 
executives on such terms as the Board may determine. 

- Salaried executive directors and specified executives are allocated superannuation guarantee 
contributions as required by law, and do not receive any other retirement benefits.  From time to 
time, some individuals may choose to sacrifice their salary or consulting fees to increase 
payments towards superannuation. 

- All remuneration paid to directors and specified executives is valued at the cost to the Company 
and expensed.  Options are valued using either the ASX trading price (for listed options issued) 
or the Black-Scholes methodology (for unlisted options issued). 

Voting and comments made at the Company’s 2015 Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

At the 2015 AGM, 99.8% of the votes received supported the adoption of the remuneration report for the 
year ended 30 June 2015. The Company did not receive any specific feedback at the AGM regarding its 
remuneration practices. 
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Service Agreements 

A summary of the current service agreements entered into with Executive Directors is set out below: 
 

Executive Director Term of 
Agreement 

Base salary per 
annum including any 

superannuation* 
(Non-performance 

based) 

Termination 
Conditions 

Proportion of 
elements of 

remuneration 
related to 

performance 

Dr Marat Abzalov* No specified term $120,000 1 month notice period - 
Mr Peter Williams Until 30 April 2016 $135,000 3 month notice period - 
 
* Base salary quoted is the position as at 30 June 2016; salaries are reviewed annually. 
** Mr Williams became a non-executive director from 1 May 2016. 

There was no service agreement with Mr Davey at 30 June 2016. $95,000 was owed to him at 30 June 
2016 for his services at a rate of $60,000pa from 1 November 2015 to 31 March 2016 then a rate of 
$300,000pa from 1 April 2016. 

Non-Executive Remuneration  

Shareholders approve the maximum aggregate remuneration for non-executive directors. The maximum 
aggregate remuneration approved for Non-Executive Directors is currently $300,000. 

It is recognised that non-executive director remuneration is ideally structured to exclude equity based 
remuneration. However, whilst the Company remains small and the full Board, including the Non-
Executive Directors, are included in the operations of the Company more intimately than may be the case 
with larger companies, the Non-Executive Directors are entitled to participate in equity based 
remuneration schemes. 

A fees of $100,000pa, plus compulsory superannuation, is payable to Mr Hohnen for his services, with 
50% of this fee and superannuation deferred until the completion of a minimum capital raising of 
$3,000,000. Fees of $19,771 were owed to him at 30 June 2016. 18,000,000 performance rights were 
approved by shareholders on 16 August 2016 and issued to him on 25 August 2016. These Performance 
expire 5 years from their issue date on 25 August 2021. These Performance Rights will each vest and 
convert into one ordinary share with no further consideration on meeting the following milestones: 

Tranche Milestone Number 

Tranche 1 
Performance Rights 

First Milestone means the completion of 12 months service with 
the Company. 2,000,000 

Tranche 2 
Performance Rights 

Second Milestone means the completion of 24 months service 
with the Company. 2,000,000 

Tranche 3 
Performance Rights 

Third Milestone means the facilitation and completion of a capital 
raising by the Company for an amount not less than $5 million. 3,000,000 

Tranche 4 
Performance Rights 

Fourth Milestone means when the closing price of the Company's 
shares on ASX is at $0.085 for 20 consecutive ASX trading days. 3,000,000 

Tranche 5 
Performance Rights 

Fifth Milestone means an ASX announcement confirming the 
successful raise of the capital expenditure required for the 
expanded plant construction as contemplated by a Board approved 
definitive feasibility study. 

8,000,000 

All Directors are entitled to have their indemnity insurance paid by the Company.  
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Bonus or Profit Participation Plan  

Performance incentives may be offered to executive directors and senior management of the Company 
through the operation of a bonus or profit participation plan at the ultimate discretion of the Board. 

Details of remuneration for year ended 30 June 2016 
 
 Salary, Fees 

and 
Commissions 

Super- 
annuation 

Contribution 

Non-
cash 

Benefits 

Share-
based 

payments 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 
Key Management Person     
Dr Marat Abzalov 109,589 10,411 - 72,535 192,535 
Mr Evan Cranston 50,000 - - - 50,000 
Mr Mark Hohnen 19,771 - - - 19,771 
Mr Grant Davey 95,000 - - - 95,000 
Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove 15,000 - - - 15,000 
Ms Oonagh Malone 29,000 - - - 29,000 
Mr Peter Williams 120,833  - 237,519 358,352 
 439,193 10,411 - 310,054 759,658 

 

Details of remuneration for year ended 30 June 2015 
 
 Salary, Fees 

and 
Commissions 

Super- 
annuation 

Contribution 

Non-
cash 

Benefits 

Share-
based 

payments 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 
Key Management Person     
Dr Marat Abzalov 109,589 10,411 - - 120,000 
Mr Evan Cranston 46,667 - - - 46,667 
Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove 30,000 - - - 30,000 
Ms Oonagh Malone 24,000 - - - 24,000 
Mr Peter Williams 135,000 - - - 135,000 
 345,256 10,411 - - 355,667 
 

Performance rights  

On 28 November 2014, shareholders approved the issue of 30,000,000 Performance Rights to Mr 
Wililams (Executive Director at the time of issue) and 9,999,999 Performance Rights to Dr Abzalov. 
These Performance Rights were not issued until 17 November 2015. These Performance Rights expire 5 
years from their issue date on 17 November 2020. On meeting vesting conditions, Performance Rights 
will each convert into one ordinary share with no further consideration. 

The Board considers that the Performance Rights, are a cost effective and efficient reward for the 
Company to make to appropriately incentivise the continued performance of the Executive Directors and 
are consistent with the strategic goals and targets of the Company. 
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The Performance Rights issued to Mr Williams will vest on meeting the following performance conditions 
before the expiry date: 

Tranche Milestone Number Value of 
tranche ($) 

Tranche 1 
Performance 
Rights 

First Milestone means when the closing price of the Company's 
shares on ASX is at $0.075 for 20 consecutive ASX trading days. 10,000,000 275,800 

Tranche 2 
Performance 
Rights 

Second Milestone means announcement by the Company of a 
discovery of 75,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or 
mineralisation of equivalent in ground value which the Company 
decides to mine in relation to a project.  

10,000,000 290,000 

Tranche 3 
Performance 
Rights 

Third Milestone means announcement by the Company of a 
discovery of 125,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or 
mineralisation of equivalent in ground value which the Company 
decides to mine in relation to a project. 

10,000,000 290,000 

The Performance Rights issued to Dr Abzalov will vest on meeting the following performance conditions 
before the expiry date: 

Tranche Milestone Number Value of 
tranche ($) 

Tranche 1 
Performance 
Rights 

First Milestone means when the closing price of the Company's 
Shares on ASX is at $0.085 for 20 consecutive ASX trading days. 3,333,333 91,000 

Tranche 2 
Performance 
Rights 

Second Milestone means announcement by the Company of a 
discovery of 75,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or 
mineralisation of equivalent in ground value which the Company 
decides to mine in relation to a project.  

3,333,333 97,667 

Tranche 3 
Performance 
Rights 

Third Milestone means announcement by the Company of a 
discovery of 125,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or 
mineralisation of equivalent in ground value which the Company 
decides to mine in relation to a project. 

3,333,333 97,667 

No expense was recognised for these performance rights for the year ended 30 June 2015 because the 
ability of the Company to delay issue effectively meant that there was no shared understanding of the 
terms and conditions of the performance rights during 2015. These performance rights were valued at 
their issue dates at $855,800 for Mr Williams and $284,334 for Dr Abzalov for a total value of $1,140,133. 
Expenses of $237,519 for Mr Williams and $72,535 for Dr Abzalov have been recognised during 2016 as 
these performance rights are expensed over the expected vesting periods. 

Performance rights were valued at the closing share price on the grant date, less discounts to reflect the 
effects of any market based vesting conditions as detailed in this table. The expected vesting period for 
each performance right for performance based vesting conditions is the period until expiry of the 
performance right. 

Options issued as part of remuneration 

There were no compensation options issued to Directors during the year ended 30 June 2015 or 2016. 
No Director options were exercised or lapsed during the financial year. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ Report continued 

 
BOSS RESOURCES LIMITED ABN 38 116 834 336         13 

 

Shares Issued on Exercise of Compensation Options or Performance Rights 

No options or performance rights have been exercised during or since the year end. 

Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
Shareholding 

The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director and other 
members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related 
parties, is set out below: 
 
2016 
Ordinary Shares 

Balance at 
the start of 
the year or 

at 
appointment 

Received as 
part of 

remuneration 

Options 
Exercised 

Net changes 
other 

Balance at 
the end of 

the year or 
at 

resignation 
Dr Marat Abzalov 1,470,499 - - 1,588,199 3,058,698 
Mr Evan Cranston - - - 6,666,667 6,666,667 
Mr Grant Davey 9,333,333 - - 1,150,000 10,483,333 
Mr Mark Hohnen - - - - - 
Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove 3,352,500 - - 4,674,333 8,026,833 
Ms Oonagh Malone 700,000 - - 280,000 980,000 
Mr Peter Williams 24,172,647 - - 8,333,332 32,505,979 
 39,028,979 - - 22,692,531 61,721,510 

 

Option holding 

The number options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director 
and other members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally 
related parties, is set out below: 
 
2016 
Options over ordinary 
shares 

Balance at 
the start of 

the year 
Granted Exercised 

Expired/ 
forfeited/ 

other 

Balance at 
the end of 

the year 
Dr Marat Abzalov - - - - - 
Mr Evan Cranston 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 - 
Mr Grant Davey - - - - - 
Mr Mark Hohnen - - - - - 
Mr Thomas Gladwin-Grove 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 
Ms Oonagh Malone - - - - - 
Mr Peter Williams - - - - - 
 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000 - 
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Other transactions with key management personnel and their related parties 

Evan Cranston is a director of Konkera Corporate. Konkera Corporate received $113,667 during the year 
for the provision of administration, bookkeeping and accounting services.  Current year secretarial fees of 
$29,000 were paid to Malone Corporate Services and are included in the remuneration report for Ms 
Malone. At 30 June 2016, the Group had no creditor balances payable to Konkera Corporate and $3,000 
payable to Malone Corporate Services. 

All transactions with related parties have been entered into on normal commercial terms and conditions 
no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

 [END OF AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT] 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 
Evan Cranston 
Corporate Director 
DATED at PERTH this 30th day of September 2016    



THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING

RSM Australia Partners is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM.  RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network.  Each member of the RSM network is an independent 
accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right.  The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction. 

RSM Australia Partners ABN 36 965 185 036

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

RSM Australia Partners

8 St Georges Terrace Perth WA 6000 
GPO Box R1253 Perth WA 6844 

T +61 (0) 8 9261 9100 
F +61 (0) 8 9261 9111 

www.rsm.com.au 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of Boss Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, I 
declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and 

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS 

Perth, WA DAVID WALL 
Dated:  30 September 2016  Partner 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
  Consolidated 

 Note 2016  2015 

  $  $ 

     
     
Revenue 2 167,456  109,577 
     
Other income 2 289,820  - 
     
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (37,413)  - 
Impairment of exploration and evaluation 9 (80,000)  - 
Employees and consultants  (1,027,622)  (458,179) 
Accounting and legal  (273,198)  (132,733) 
Travel and accommodation  (83,842)  (20,692) 
Financing charges  (230,008)  (3,851) 
Regulatory fees  (38,436)  (31,715) 
Occupancy and communications  (59,264)  (44,026) 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 9 (1,082,224)  (378,245) 
Impairment of financial assets  (98,130)  (80,146) 
Other expenses  (336,651)  (61,769) 

     
Loss before income tax expense  (2,889,512)  (1,101,779) 

     
Income tax expense  3 -  - 

     
Loss after income tax expense  (2,889,512)  (1,101,779) 
Attributable to non-controlling interests  (213,572)  - 
Attributable to members of Boss Resources Ltd  (2,675,940)  (1,101,779) 
     
Other Comprehensive income:     
     
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to operating result:     

     
Net gain/ (loss) on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets  -  9,913 
Exchange differences on translating foreign controlled entities  146  (1,751) 

     
Total other comprehensive gain/ (loss) for the year, net of tax  146  8,162 

     
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year  (2,889,366)  (1,093,617) 
Attributable to non-controlling interests  (213,572)  - 
Attributable to members of Boss Resources Ltd  (2,675,794)  (1,093,617) 
     
Loss per share     
Basic and diluted (loss) per share (cents per share) 18 (0.36)  (0.20) 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Financial Position 

As at 30 June 2016 
 
  Consolidated 

 Note 2016  2015 

  $  $ 
CURRENT ASSETS     
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,619,672  935,881 
Trade and other receivables 5 84,903  36,119 
Other assets 6 29,052  219,687 
Total Current Assets  2,733,627  1,191,687 

     
     
NON-CURRENT ASSETS     
Plant and equipment 7 420,903  26,688 
Other financial assets 8 8,961,199  92,532 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 9 13,834,394  5,080,000 
Total Non-Current Assets  23,216,496  5,199,220 

     
TOTAL ASSETS  25,950,123  6,390,907 

     
     
CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Trade and other payables 10 401,198  95,892 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  401,198  95,892 
     
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Borrowings 11 7,000,000  - 
Provisions 12 8,842,380  - 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  15,842,380  - 
     
TOTAL LIABILITIES  16,243,578  95,892 

     
NET ASSETS  9,706,545  6,295,015 

     
EQUITY     
Issued capital 13 49,138,898  43,302,956 
Reserves 14 7,209,952  6,317,085 
Accumulated losses 15 (46,428,733)  (43,325,026) 
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE 
COMPANY  9,920,117  6,295,015 

Non-controlling interest 16 (213,572)  - 
TOTAL EQUITY  9,706,545  6,295,015 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.   
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Statement of Changes in Equity  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 

Consolidated Issued 
Capital  

Accumulated  
Losses  

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

 
Option 

Reserve  
Financial 

Assets 
Reserve 

 Minority 
Interest 

 Total 

 $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

              Balance at 1 July 2015 43,302,956  (43,325,026)  (427,913)  6,744,998  -  -  6,295,015 
Loss for the year -  (2,675,940)  -  -  -  (213,572)  (2,889,512) 
Other comprehensive gain/ (loss) for the 
year -  -  146  -  -  -  146 

Total comprehensive (loss)  for the year -  (2,675,940)  146  -  -  (213,572)  (2,889,366) 
Shares issued during the year 5,861,262  -  -  -  -  -  5,861,262 
Capital raising costs (25,320)  -  -  -  -  -  (25,320) 
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries -  (427,767)  427,767  -  -  -  - 
Share based payments -  -  -  464,954  -  -  464,954 
Balance at 30 June 2016 49,138,898  (46,428,733)  -  7,209,952  -  (213,572)  9,706,545 
              
Balance at 1 July 2014 43,302,956  (42,223,247)  (426,162)  6,744,998  (9,913)  -  7,388,632 
Loss for the year -  (1,101,779)  -  -  -  -  (1,101,779) 
Other comprehensive gain/ (loss) for the 
year -  -  (1,751)  -  9,913  -  8,162 

Total comprehensive (loss)  for the year -  (1,101,779)  (1,751)  -  9,913  -  (1,093,617) 
Shares issued during the year -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Capital raising costs -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Share based payments -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance at 30 June 2015 43,302,956  (43,325,026)  (427,913)  6,744,998  -  -  6,295,015 
              
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
  Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
 Note $  $ 
  Inflows/(Outflows) 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
Payments to suppliers and employees  (940,797)  (466,739) 
Expenditure on mining interests  (1,175,757)  (623,893) 
Finance costs  (1,287)  (239) 
Interest received  115,835  54,463 
Other receipts  289,720  - 
Net cash (used in) operating activities 17 (1,712,286)  (1,036,408) 

 
    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities     
Purchase of plant and equipment  -  (2,888) 
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment  56,451  200,000 
Capitalised exploration expenditure  (2,521,677)  - 
Cash on acquisition of subsidiaries 29 25,698  - 
Cash on disposal of subsidiaries 30 (318)  - 
Other –deposits  -  (200,000) 
Net cash (used in) investing activities  (2,439,846)  (2,888) 

     
Cash Flows from Financing Activities     
Proceeds from issue of share capital (net)  5,835,942  - 
Net cash provided by financing activities  5,835,942  - 

     
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,683,810  (1,039,296) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial 
year 

 935,881  
 

1,974,958 
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents  (119)  219 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 4 2,619,672  935,881 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 

These consolidated financial statements and notes represent those of Boss Resources Limited (the ‘Company’ or 
‘parent entity’) and Controlled Entities (the “Group” or “consolidated entity”). Boss Resources Limited is a listed public 
company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The separate financial statements of the parent entity, Boss Resources Limited, have not been presented within this 
financial report as permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. Supplementary information about the parent entity is 
disclosed in note 27. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 30 September 2016 by the Directors of the Company. 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. The Group is a for-profit entity for financial reporting 
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. 

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a financial 
report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  

Except for cash flow information, the financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based 
on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, 
financial assets and financial liabilities. Material accounting policies adopted in preparation of this financial report are 
presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 

Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, the 
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
investment properties, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and derivative financial instruments. 

Critical accounting estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the consolidated entity's accounting policies. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the financial statements are disclosed below. 

New and Amended Accounting Policies adopted by the Group 

The Group has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been 
early adopted. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 
2016. The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations, most relevant to the consolidated entity, are set out below. 
 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces 
all previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement'. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset 
shall be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial 
instrument assets are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an 
irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-
trading) in other comprehensive income ('OCI'). For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the 
change in fair value that relates to the entity's own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an 
accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the 
accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the entity. New impairment requirements will use an 
'expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognise an allowance. Impairment will be measured under a 12-month ECL 
method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which 
case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces additional new disclosures. The consolidated 
entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the 
consolidated entity. 
  
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard provides 
a single standard for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue 
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts 
(either written, verbal or implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the 
contract; determine the transaction price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk; allocation of the 
transaction price to the separate performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone selling price of each 
distinct good or service, or estimation approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue 
when each performance obligation is satisfied. Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than 
adjusted to revenue. For goods, the performance obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of 
the goods. For services, the performance obligation is satisfied when the service has been provided, typically for 
promises to transfer services to customers. For performance obligations satisfied over time, an entity would select an 
appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue should be recognised as the performance 
obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be presented in an entity's statement of financial position as a 
contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance 
and the customer's payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required to enable users to 
understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgments made in applying the guidance to those 
contracts; and any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer. The consolidated 
entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the 
consolidated entity. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
AASB 16 Leases 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The standard replaces 
AASB 117 'Leases' and for lessees will eliminate the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Subject 
to exceptions, a 'right-of-use' asset will be capitalised in the statement of financial position, measured as the present 
value of the unavoidable future lease payments to be made over the lease term. The exceptions relate to short-term 
leases of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and small office furniture) 
where an accounting policy choice exists whereby either a 'right-of-use' asset is recognised or lease payments are 
expensed to profit or loss as incurred. A liability corresponding to the capitalised lease will also be recognised, 
adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any future 
restoration, removal or dismantling costs. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a 
depreciation charge for the leased asset (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised 
lease liability (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease 
under AASB 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under AASB 117. However EBITDA (Earnings 
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) results will be improved as the operating expense is replaced by 
interest expense and depreciation in profit or loss under AASB 16. For classification within the statement of cash 
flows, the lease payments will be separated into both a principal (financing activities) and interest (either operating or 
financing activities) component. For lessor accounting, the standard does not substantially change how a lessor 
accounts for leases. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2019 but the impact of its adoption is 
yet to be assessed by the consolidated entity. 
  

Accounting policies 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below.  These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

Principles of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of the parent (Boss 
Resources Limited) and all of the subsidiaries (including any structured entities). Subsidiaries are entities the 
parent controls. The parent controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. 

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 19. 

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financial statements of the 
Group from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a subsidiary is 
discontinued from the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains or 
losses on transactions between Group entities are fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity of the 
accounting policies adopted by the Group. 

Equity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group are presented as “non-
controlling interests”. The Group initially recognises non-controlling interests that are present ownership 
interests in subsidiaries and are entitled to a proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net assets on liquidation 
at either fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net assets. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, non-controlling interests are attributed their share of profit or loss and each 
component of other comprehensive income. Non-controlling interests are shown separately within the equity 
section of the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity 
of the consolidated entity. Losses incurred by the consolidated entity are attributed to the non-controlling 
interest in full, even if that results in a deficit balance. 

Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, 
liabilities and non-controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences 
recognised in equity. The consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the 
fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Operating Segments 

Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on 
the same basis as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM'). The CODM 
is responsible for the allocation of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance. 

Current and non-current classification 

Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current 
classification. 

An asset is current when: it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-
current. 

A liability is current when: it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the 
purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or there is no 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 

Business combinations 

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses. 

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination 
involving entities or businesses under common control. The business combination will be accounted for from 
the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to certain limited exemptions). 

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability resulting 
from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial recognition, contingent 
consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within 
equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is remeasured in each reporting period to 
fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can be identified 
as existing at acquisition date. 

All transaction costs incurred in relation to business combinations are expensed to the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income. 

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of 
the sum of: 

(i) the consideration transferred; 

(ii) any non-controlling interest; and 

(iii) the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest; 

over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. 

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the acquisition 
date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the separate 
financial statements. 

Fair value remeasurements in any pre-existing equity holdings are recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which they arise. Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had previously been recognised in other 
comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss. 

The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less than a 
100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Group can 
elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value (full 
goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable net 
assets (proportionate interest method). In such circumstances, the Group determines which method to adopt 
for each acquisition and this is stated in the respective notes to these financial statements disclosing the 
business combination. 

Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interests is determined using valuation 
techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available. Under this method, goodwill 
attributable to the non-controlling interests is recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is 
included in investments in associates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on hand and in banks and short term deposits are stated at nominal value.  For the purpose of the 
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, and money market 
investments readily convertible to cash within 90 days, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale 

Non-current assets and assets of disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will 
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at 
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal. For non-current assets or assets of 
disposal groups to be classified as held for sale, they must be available for immediate sale in their present 
condition and their sale must be highly probable. 

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current assets and 
assets of disposal groups to fair value less costs of disposal. A gain is recognised for any subsequent 
increases in fair value less costs of disposal of a non-current assets and assets of disposal groups, but not in 
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. 

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and 
other expenses attributable to the liabilities of assets held for sale continue to be recognised. 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale are 
presented separately on the face of the statement of financial position, in current assets. The liabilities of 
disposal groups classified as held for sale are presented separately on the face of the statement of financial 
position, in current liabilities. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Foreign Currency Translation 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars (AUD), which is also the functional 
currency of the parent company. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the parent company, using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items at 
year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the 
transaction (not retranslated).  Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when fair value was determined. 

In the Group's financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of group entities with a functional 
currency other than AUD (the Group's presentation currency) are translated into AUD upon consolidation.  
The functional currency of the entities in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period. 

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into AUD at the closing rate at the reporting date.  
Income and expenses have been translated into the Group's presentation currency at the average rate over 
the reporting period.  Exchange differences are charged/credited to other comprehensive income and 
recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative 
translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or loss and recognised as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal.  Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have 
been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into AUD at the closing rate. 

Income Tax 

The income tax expense or revenue for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable income 
based on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary difference at the tax rates expected to apply 
when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or 
substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.  The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of 
deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in 
relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that 
at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.  

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probably that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.  
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount 
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.  Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 
recognised directly in equity. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Plant and Equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and therefore carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment.   

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of 
the recoverable amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the 
expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal.  The 
expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
consolidated entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial period in which 
they are incurred. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all plant and is depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the 
consolidated entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

Class of Fixed Asset    Depreciation Rate 

Plant and equipment    12.5-66.67% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains 
and losses are included in the statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  

Exploration and Development Expenditure 

For each area of interest, expenditure incurred in the exploration for, and evaluation of, mineral resources are 
either expensed as incurred or capitalised and recognised as an exploration and evaluation asset.  

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure capitalised are only carried forward to the extent that 
they are expected to be recouped through the successful development of the area or where activities in the 
area have not yet reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically 
recoverable reserves.  Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit 
in the year in which the decision to abandon the area is made. 

Where permits for capitalised areas of interest are not held directly by the Group, the Group has enforceable 
current rights to the capitalised areas of interest. 

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised over the 
life of the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves.  A regular review 
is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward costs in 
relation to that area of interest.  Costs of site restoration are provided over the life of the facility from when 
exploration commences and are included in the costs of that stage.  Site restoration costs include the 
dismantling and removal of mining plant, equipment and building structures, waste removal, and rehabilitation 
of the site in accordance with clauses of the mining permits.  Such costs have been determined using 
estimates of future costs, current legal requirements and technology on an undiscounted basis. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Leases 

Lease payments for operating leases where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor are 
changes as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Trade and Other Payables 

Trade payables and other accounts are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future 
payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services. 

Trade and Other Receivables 

Trade account receivable, amounts due from related parties and other receivables represent the principal 
amounts due at balance date plus accrued interest less, where applicable, any unearned income and 
provision for doubtful accounts. 

Revenue 

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the consolidated entity and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate methods, which, for floating rate financial 
assets, is the rate inherent in the instrument.  

All revenue is stated net of goods and services tax (GST).  

Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except: 

– where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of any asset or as part of an item of expense; or 

– for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

Impairment of Assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment.  Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised 
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  For the purposes of 
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash generating units). 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Share-Based Payment Transactions 

The Company provides benefits to key management personnel of the Group in the form of share-based 
payments, whereby the key management personnel render services in exchange for shares or rights over 
shares (equity settled transactions). The Company does not provide cash settled share based payments. 

The cost of equity settled transactions with key management personnel are measured by reference to the fair 
value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.  

The cost of equity settled transactions are recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over 
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees 
become fully entitled to the award (the vesting period). 

The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting date 
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired, and the Company’s best estimate of the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The profit or loss charge or credit for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognised for the period. 

No cumulative expense is recognised for awards that ultimately do not vest (in respect of non-market vesting 
conditions). 

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except borrowing 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale.  In this case the borrowing costs are 
capitalised as part of the cost of such a qualifying asset. 

The amount of borrowing costs relating to funds borrowed generally and used for the acquisition of qualifying 
assets has been determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on those assets.  The 
capitalisation rate comprises the weighted average of borrowing costs incurred during the period. 

Comparative figures 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current financial year. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance 
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assets but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects the risks specific to the liability. 

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
borrowing cost. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Employee Benefits  

Short-term employee benefits 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave 
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in current liabilities in respect of 
employees' services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

Liabilities for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting 
date are recognised in non-current liabilities, provided there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability. The liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration 
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of 
service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated 
future cash outflows. 

Issued capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a 
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

 

Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Boss Resources  
Limited, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares 
issued during the financial year. 

Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no 
consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 

Provision for restoration 

Costs of site restoration are recognised in full at present value as a non-current liability and an equivalent 
amount may be capitalised as part of the cost of the asset when an obligation arises to decommission or 
restore a site to a certain condition after abandonment as a result of bringing the assets to their present 
location. The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of the project and the provision is accredited 
periodically as the discounting of the liability unwinds.  The unwinding of the discount is recorded as interest 
expense.   Site restoration costs include the dismantling and removal of mining plant, equipment and building 
structures, waste removal and rehabilitation of the site in accordance with clauses of the mining permits.  
Such costs are determined using estimates of future costs, current legal requirements and technology on an 
undiscounted basis. 

Any changes in the estimates for the costs are accounted for on a prospective basis.  In determining the costs 
of site restoration there is uncertainty regarding the nature and extent of the restoration due to community 
expectations and future legislation.  Accordingly the costs are determined on the basis that restoration will be 
completed within one year of abandoning a site. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Borrowings 
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction 
costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Where there is 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, the 
loans or borrowings are classified as non-current. 
Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates 
its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. 
Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various 
factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual 
results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next 
financial year are discussed below. 

Capitalised Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure 

Exploration and evaluation costs have been capitalised on the basis that the consolidated entity will 
commence commercial production in the future, from which time the costs will be amortised in proportion to 
the depletion of the mineral resources. Key judgements are applied in considering costs to be capitalised 
which includes determining expenditures directly related to these activities and allocating overheads between 
those that are expensed and capitalised. In addition, costs are only capitalised that are expected to be 
recovered either through successful development or sale of the relevant mining interest. Factors that could 
impact the future commercial production at the mine include the level of reserves and resources, future 
technology changes, which could impact the cost of mining, future legal changes and changes in commodity 
prices. To the extent that capitalised costs are determined not to be recoverable in the future, they will be 
written off in the period in which this determination is made. 

Share based payment transactions 

The consolidated entity measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the 
fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by 
using either the Binomial or Black-Scholes model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the 
instruments were granted. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based 
payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next annual 
reporting period but may impact profit or loss and equity. 

Restoration provision 

A provision has been made for the present value of anticipated costs for future rehabilitation of land explored 
or mined. The consolidated entity's mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and 
regulations governing the protection of the environment. The consolidated entity recognises management's 
best estimate for assets retirement obligations and site rehabilitations in the period in which they are incurred. 
Actual costs incurred in the future periods could differ materially from the estimates. Additionally, future 
changes to environmental laws and regulations, life of mine estimates and discount rates could affect the 
carrying amount of this provision. 
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                        Consolidated 

 
2016   2015 

$ $ 
NOTE 2: REVENUE     
     
Interest revenue  167,456  49,550 
Other income    60,027 
  167,456  109,577 
Other income     
R&D tax rebate received during the year that does not meet the 
definition of an income tax benefit  289,820  - 

  289,820  - 
 
NOTE 3: INCOME TAX EXPENSE     
 
a. Income tax expense 
Current tax -  - 
Deferred tax -  - 
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years -  - 
 -  - 
 
b. Numerical reconciliation of income tax benefit to prima facie tax payable 

 
Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense (2,889,512)  (1,101,779) 
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 28.5% (2015: 30%) (823,511)  (330,534) 
    
Tax effect amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating 
taxable income:    

Tax effect on different tax rate of oversea subsidiaries -  (2,314) 
Share based payments 132,512  - 
Impairment of assets 50,767  24,044 
Other non-deductible expenses and non-assessable income (986)  (13,893) 
Income tax benefit not recognised 641,218  322,697 
Income tax expense -  -  
 
c. Unrecognised deferred tax assets – tax losses 
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 11,492,555  14,116,899 
Potential tax benefit at the Australian tax rate of 28.5% (2015: 30%)  3,275,378  4,235,070 
 
The Group has Australian tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised of $11,492,555. This does not 
include the tax losses of Boss Uranium Pty Ltd to the extent that contribution of taxable income to the Group by Boss 
Uranium would result in reversal or partial reversal of the full impairment of the legally enforceable loan of 
$157,959,780 owing by Boss Uranium, which was assigned by the vendor to the Company. The Group is not 
capable of tax consolidation in accordance with Australian tax law. 
 
d. Unrecognised temporary differences 
Unrecognised deferred tax asset at 30 June relates to the following:    
Accumulated impairment of assets 8,200,754  8,642,381 
Capital raising costs recognised directly in equity 22,711  29,664 
Other unrecognised temporary differences 50,985  5,195 
 8,274,450  8,677,240 
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NOTE 3: INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)     
 
The temporary differences have not been brought to account because the Directors do not believe it is appropriate to 
regard realisation of those deferred tax assets as being probable. The benefit of these deferred tax assets will only 
be obtained if: 

(1) the Group derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit 
from the deductions for the temporary differences to be realised; 

(2) the Group continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation; and 

(3) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the entity in realising the benefit from the deductions for the 
temporary differences. 

No franking credits are available. 
 
NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
Cash at bank  1,519,672  435,881 
Term deposit  1,100,000  500,000 
  2,619,672  935,881 
 
NOTE 5: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  

        
Trade receivables  216,393  36,119 
Less provision for doubtful debts  (131,490)  - 
  84,903   36,119 
Receivables are non-interest bearing and generally repayable within 30 days. During the year the Group fully 
impaired an amount of $131,490 that was receivable for sales of fuel that was acquired as part of the Honeymoon 
acquisition. The impairment expense has been recognised within the impairment of financial assets expense.  
 
Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. 
 
NOTE 6: OTHER ASSETS  

   Deposit   -  200,000 
Prepaid expenses   29,052  19,687 
  29,052   219,687 
 
NOTE 7: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    
     
Cost  505,237  43,419 
Accumulated depreciation  (84,334)  (16,731) 
  420,903  26,688 
Movements in Carrying Amounts:     
Carrying amount at beginning of the year   26,688  37,513 
Additions  -  2,888 
Additions through acquisition of subsidiary (see note 29)  461,818  - 
Depreciation expense  (67,603)  (13,713) 
Foreign exchange movement  -  - 
Assets reclassified as held for sale  -  - 
Carrying amount at end of the year  420,903  26,688 
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NOTE 8: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
Security bonds  8,890,966  55,660 
Available for sale financial assets  70,233  36,872 
  8,961,199  92,532 
Listed investments, at fair value     
      -   Shares in listed corporations  70,233  36,872 
 
Movement in available for sale financial assets 
Opening fair value  36,872  107,106 
Impairment expense  -  (80,146) 
Gain in value  33,361  - 
Revaluation increment / (decrement)  -  9,912 
Closing fair value  70,233  36,872 
 
Movement in security bonds: 
 Opening value 55,660  63,740 

 Security bond acquisition with Honeymoon project (see note 
29) 8,842,380  - 

 Foreign exchange movement 149  (45) 
 Security bonds lost on loss of control of subsidiaries (7,223)  - 
 Return of security bond -  (8,035) 
 Closing value 8,890,966  55,660 
 
Available for sale financial assets comprise investment in the ordinary issued capital of an ASX listed entity. There 
are no fixed returns or fixed maturity dates attached to this investment. This investment was impaired at 30 June 
2015 after a significant decline in the price of the quoted share price. Revaluation increments previously recognised 
in other comprehensive income for the investment were reversed and expensed during the financial year ended 30 
June 2015.  
 
Security bonds are term deposits held as security and deposits held by service providers. The term deposits are held 
by Australian banks with at least 'A' credit rankings. Security deposits that were lost on loss of control of subsidiaries 
were held by utility suppliers in Burkina Faso. 
 
NOTE 9: EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
     
Balance at the beginning of the year  5,080,000  5,080,000 
Exploration expenditure incurred   1,082,224  378,245 
Exploration and evaluation interest 
acquisition with Honeymoon project (see 
note 29) 

 8,834,394  - 

Impairment of exploration and evaluation  (80,000)  - 
Exploration expenditure expensed  (1,082,224)  (378,245) 
Balance at the end of the year  13,834,394  5,080,000 
 
The expenditure above relates principally to the exploration and evaluation phase. The ultimate recoupment of this 
expenditure is dependent upon the successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the 
respective areas of interest, at amounts at least equal to book value. 
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NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
Trade payables  158,400  67,089 
Accrued expenditure  185,264  28,803 
Interest payable on 
promissory notes 

 57,534  - 

    - 
  401,198  95,892 
 
All payables are on industry standard payment terms. 
 
NOTE 11: BORROWINGS 
     
  $  $ 

 Promissory notes 7,000,000  - 
  7,000,000  - 
 
During the year, two promissory notes were issued by the Company, for $3,000,000 and $4,000,000, to the vendor 
of the Honeymoon Project on behalf of Boss Energy Pty Ltd (Boss Energy) to enable Boss Energy to partially repay 
loans owning to the vendor of the Honeymoon Project. 
 
Interest on these promissory notes accrues daily on the principal, at interest rates equal to the bank interest rates 
paid on performance bonds over the Honeymoon Project. 
 
The promissory notes are secured by a charge in favour of the noteholder over all current and future assets of the 
Company, other than assets based in Sweden, Norway and Finland. 
 
Repayment of the promissory notes is due on the earliest of: any change in control of the Company; any sale of the 
Honeymoon Project; the Company obtaining financing for at least $15,000,000 with a minimum consequent 
repayment date of 30 November 2016; or at the longstop dates of 30 November 2017 and 30 November 2019 for the 
$3,000,000 and $4,000,000 promissory notes respectively. At 30 June 2016, the total face value of the promissory 
notes of $7,000,000 is recognised as a non-current borrowing while the accrued interest payable of $57,534 is 
included in the balance of current trade and other payables. 
 
The vendor can transfer these notes, on the consent of the Company, which consent must not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
NOTE 12: PROVISIONS 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 

 Restoration provision 8,842,380  - 
  8,842,380  - 
 
 The provision movement for the half-year is as follows:    

 Carrying amount at the start of the period -  - 

 Restoration provision recognised upon acquisition of assets 
(note 29) 8,842,380  - 

 Carrying amount at the end of the period 8,842,380  - 
 
Costs of site restoration are recognised in full at present value as a non-current liability and an equivalent amount 
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset when an obligation arises to decommission or restore a site to a certain 
condition after abandonment as a result of bringing the assets to their present location. 
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NOTE 13: ISSUED CAPITAL 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
a) Issued Capital - fully paid ordinary shares 49,138,898  43,302,956 

      Ordinary Shares    
 2016    
 Ordinary Shares Number  $ 
 Balance at 1 July 2015 547,341,477  43,302,956 
 Share issue - 6 October 2015 at $0.015 per share 91,719,107  1,375,786 
 Share issue - 20 October 2015 at $0.015 per share 165,365,052  2,480,476 
 Share issue – 16 November 2015 at $0.015 per share 30,333,333  455,000 
 Share issue – 24 December 2015 at $0.015 per share 20,000,000  300,000 
 Share issue – 7 June 2016 at $0.04 per share 31,250,000  1,250,000 
 Share issue costs -  (25,320) 
 Balance at 30 June 2016 886,008,969  49,138,898 
     
 
 Ordinary Shares    

 2015    
 Ordinary Shares Number  $ 
 Balance at 1 July 2014 547,341,477  43,302,956 
 Share issue costs -  - 
 Balance at 30 June 2015 547,341,477  43,302,956 
 
Ordinary shareholders participate in dividends and the proceeds in winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the 
shares held. 
 
b) Capital Risk Management 
 
When managing capital, management’s objective is to ensure the Company continues as a going concern as well as 
to maintain optimal returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.  Management also aims to maintain 
a capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the Company.  In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders, issue new shares, enter into joint ventures or sell assets. 
 
The Company does not have a defined share buy-back plan.  No dividends were paid or declared in the years 
ending 2016 and 2015. There is no current intention to incur debt funding on behalf of the Company as on-going 
exploration expenditure will be funded via cash reserves, equity or joint ventures with other companies.  The Group 
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 
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NOTE 14: RESERVES 
 
                  Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
 Options reserve 7,209,952  6,744,998 
 Foreign currency translation reserve -  (427,913) 
  7,209,952  6,317,085 
     

a) Options reserve Number  $ 
 2016    
 Balance at 1 July 2015 28,500,000  6,744,998 

 Options issued to Carbine Resources Limited that vested 
immediately 10,000,000  154,900 

 Recognition of performance rights over vesting period -  310,054 
 Expiry of options during the year (28,500,000)  - 

 Amount expensed over vesting periods for options granted in prior 
year -  - 

 Balance at 30 June 2016 10,000,000  7,209,952 
 
 2015    
 Balance at 1 July 2014 28,500,000  6,744,998 
 Expiry of options during the year -  - 

 Amount expensed over vesting periods for options granted in prior 
year -  - 

 Balance at 30 June 2015 28,500,000  6,744,998 
 
The options reserve represents the charge for outstanding options and performance rights which have met all 
conditions precedent to vest, but which have not been exercised. 

b) Financial Assets reserve 

The fair value reserve represents the revaluation of available for sale financial assets. 

c) Foreign currency translation reserve 

The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of its foreign controlled 
subsidiaries. 
 
NOTE 15: ACCUMULATED LOSSES 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
 Accumulated losses at the beginning of the year (43,325,026)  (42,223,247) 

 
Loss after income tax expense for the year that is attributable 
to members of Boss Resources Ltd (2,675,940)  (1,101,779) 

 
Previously recognised foreign currency translation reserve 
transferred to accumulated losses following loss of control of 
subsidiaries 

(427,767)  - 

 Accumulated losses at the end of the year (46,428,733)  (43,325,026) 
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NOTE 16: NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 
 
                    Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
 Non-controlling interest at the beginning of the year -  - 

 
Non-controlling interest recognised on acquisition of subsidiary 
(note 29) -  - 

 Loss of subsidiary attributable to non-controlling interest (213,572)  - 
 Non-controlling interest at the end of the year (213,572)  - 
 
NOTE 17: CASHFLOW INFORMATION 
 
a) Reconciliation of net cash used in operating activities with loss after income tax 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and deposits. Cash as at 
the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related item in the 
statement of financial position as follows: 

 
  Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 
Cash at bank and on hand  2,619,672  935,881 

     
Reconciliation of loss after related income tax to net cash used in operating activities: 

  
   Operating loss  (2,889,512)  (1,101,779) 

     
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation   67,603  13,713 
Impairment of exploration and evaluation 80,000  - 
Impairment of investment 98,130  80,146 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (16,874)  - 
Exchange differences  (1,057)  8,201 
Share based payments  464,954  - 
Gain on disposal of fixed assets  37,313  (60,027) 

     
Net changes in working capital:     

Payables  305,306  22,047 
Receivables  (48,784)  2,320 
Other assets  190,635  (1,029) 

Net cash used in operating activities (1,712,286)  (1,036,408) 

b) Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities 
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NOTE 18: LOSS PER SHARE 
 
The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share is as 
follows: 
                    Consolidated 

  2016  2015 

  $  $ 

     
Loss for the year attributable to members of the 
Company  (2,675,940)  (1,101,779) 

     
  Number  Number 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year used in calculations of basic and 
diluted loss per share  760,952,054 

 
547,341,477 

 
NOTE 19: DETAILS OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES 
 
a. Information about Principal Subsidiaries 
 
 
 Country of  

Incorporation 
Percentage Owned 

% 
  2016 2015 
Parent Entity:    
   Boss Resources Limited Australia   
Subsidiaries of Boss Resources Limited:    
   Boss Energy Pty Ltd* 
   Boss Uranium Pty Ltd** 
   Askia Gold Pty Ltd*** 

Australia 
Australia 
Australia 

80 
80 
49 

- 
- 

100 
   Boss Minerals Pty Ltd*** Australia 49 100 
   Boss Resources Sweden Pty Ltd**** Australia 100 100 
Subsidiary of Askia Gold Pty Ltd:    
   Boss Gold SARL (formerly Askia Gold SARL)*** Burkina Faso 49 100 
Subsidiary of Boss Minerals Pty Ltd:    
   Boss Minerals SARL*** Burkina Faso 49 100 
 
*Boss Energy Pty Ltd (Boss Energy) was incorporated on 27 August 2015 as the holding company for Boss Uranium 
Pty Ltd and the Honeymoon Project. 80% of the shares in Boss Energy are held by the parent Entity. The remaining 
20% of shares in Boss Energy are held by Wattle Energy Pty Ltd (Wattle). Wattle is controlled by Mr Grant Davey 
who was appointed as a director of the Company on 12 January 2016. Boss Energy is controlled by the Company. 
Wattle’s shareholding in Boss Energy is free carried until completion of a Bankable Feasibility Study for the 
Honeymoon Project (BFS) and Decision to Mine. 
 
On completion of the BFS, Boss may buy out Wattle’s shareholding at fair market value, where fair market value is 
determined by mutual agreement or external valuation. While Wattle remains a shareholder of Boss Energy, Wattle 
has a right by written notice to appoint one Director to the board of the Company in proportion to Wattle’s 
shareholding in Boss Energy. 
 
** Boss Uranium Pty Ltd, (Boss Uranium) (formerly Uranium One Australia Pty Ltd) was acquired on Completion of 
the Honeymoon acquisition on 30 November 2015. All shares in Boss Uranium are held directly by Boss Energy. 
 
***During 2016, the Group Lost control of Askia Gold Pty Ltd, Boss Minerals Pty Ltd, Boss Gold SARL and Boss 
Minerals SARL pursuant to the Farm out agreement detailed in note 30. 
 
**** Boss Resources Sweden Pty Ltd has been 100% owned and controlled by Boss Resources Ltd since its 
incorporation in August 2014. 
 
There have been no other movements in percentage ownership or cost of controlled entities during the year.  
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NOTE 19: DETAILS OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
b. Summarised Financial Information of Subsidiaries with Material Non-controlling Interests 
 
Set out below is the summarised financial information for Boss Uranium as it has a non-controlling interest that is 
material to the group. The information is only provided as at 30 June 2016 and for the period from acquisition on 30 
November 2015 to 30 June 2016 because Boss Uranium was only acquired by the Group on 30 November 2015. 
 Boss Uranium 
Summarised statement of financial position 2016 

 $ 
Current assets 21,317 
Non-current assets 18,084,692 

  
Total assets 18,106,009 

  
Current liabilities 168,291,268 
Non-current liabilities 8,842,380 
  
Total liabilities 177,133,648 

  
Net Liabilities (159,027,639) 
 
The non-current assets of Boss Uranium include a secured deposit of $8,842,380 that is security against a non-
current reclamation liability of $8,842,380. The nature of this non-current reclamation liability significantly restricts the 
Group’s ability to access the secured deposit for the purpose of meeting other liabilities of the Group. 
 
The current liabilities of Boss Uranium include an intra-group loan balance owing to the Company of $168,291,268. 
This intra-group loan balance is unsecured and at call, so consequently considered current despite the nature of 
operations.  
 Boss Uranium 
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 2016 

 $ 
Revenue - 

Loss before income tax (1,067,860) 

Income tax expense - 

Loss after income tax expense (1,067,860) 

Other comprehensive income - 

Total comprehensive income (1,067,860) 

 
 Boss Uranium 
Summarised statement of cashflows 2016 

 $ 
Net cash used in operating activities (814,203) 

Net cash from financing activities 809,822 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the reporting period 25,698 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the reporting period 21,317 

  

Other financial information  

Loss attributable to non-controlling interest (213,572) 

Accumulated non-controlling interest at the end of the reporting period (213,572) 
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NOTE 20: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
 
Compensation of key management personnel 
 
Refer to the remuneration report contained in the Directors’ Report for details of the remuneration paid or payable to 
each member of the Group’s key management personnel For the Year Ended 30 June 2016. 
 
                      Consolidated 

  2016  2015 

  
$  $ 

Short term employment benefit 439,193  345,256 
Other benefits  10,411  10,411 
Share based payments  310,054  - 

  759,658  355,667 
 
NOTE 21: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
There has been no change in contingent liabilities since the last annual reporting except for the following contingent 
liabilities assumed with the acquisition of Boss Uranium, as detailed in note 29: 

• $2 million is payable in cash and/or shares upon the later of restart of the operations of the Honeymoon 
Project with commercial production or 30 November 2020. 

• 10% of the net operating cash flow of the Honeymoon Project is payable annually up to a maximum of $3 
million in total. 

• Acquired subsidiary Boss Uranium has agreed to sell up to 1.3 million pounds of uranium oxide (U3O8) to a 
potential United States customer, calculated as at least 20% of each prior quarter’s production up to a total 
of 250,000 pounds per year. The price is to be determined based on future market prices. 

• Acquired subsidiary Boss Uranium has agreed to sell uranium oxide to a potential European customer on 
the following terms: 

o Up to 50,000 pounds of uranium oxide per year is to be delivered for each of the first three years 
following commencement of production. 

o Up to the lesser of 200,000 pounds of uranium oxide per year or 20% of the prior year’s production 
is to be delivered for each of the first five years following commencement of production. 

o The price is to be determined based on future market prices. 
o The buyer has an option to extend the delivery period by one year. 

 
With the acquisition of Boss Uranium, the Group acquired the exploration expenditure commitments detailed in note 22. 
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NOTE 22: COMMITMENTS  
 
The Group has certain obligations to perform minimum exploration work and to expend minimum amounts of money 
on such work on mining tenements.  These obligations may be varied from time to time subject to approval and are 
expected to be fulfilled in the normal course of the operations of the Group. These commitments have not been 
provided for in the financial statements.  Due to the nature of the Group’s operations in exploring and evaluating 
areas of interest, expenditure may be reduced by seeking exemption from individual commitments, by relinquishment 
of tenure or any new joint venture arrangements. Expenditure may be increased when new tenements are granted or 
joint venture agreements amended. The minimum expenditure commitments on the tenements are: 

              Consolidated 
  2016  2015 
  $  $ 

Exploration expenditure     
Less than 12 months  927,185 

 
- 

12 months to 5 years  420,000 
 

- 

 
 1,347,185 

 
- 

 
Administration Services     
Less than 12 months  60,000 

 
64,276 

12 months to 5 years  - 
 

- 

 
 60,000 

 
64,276 

Lease commitment     
Less than 12 months  24,000 

 
18,000 

12 months to 5 years  - 
 

- 

 
 24,000 

 
18,000 

Executive services commitment    
Less than 12 months  10,000  43,750 
12 months to 5 years  -  - 
  10,000  43,750 
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NOTE 23: SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are used by the Board (the chief 
operating decision makers) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.   
The Group’s operations in 2016 were managed in Australia and involved exploration of its mineral interests.  During 
the year, assets were located in Sweden and Finland (Nickel and Copper), Australia and Burkina Faso (Gold).  
Segment assets are allocated to countries based on where the assets are located. 

GOLD 
During the year, the Group has farmed out tenements considered prospective for gold. No income has been derived 
from the recovery of gold during the year (2015: Nil). 

URANIUM 
The Group acquired and conducted exploration upon tenements considered prospective for oil shale in 2016. No 
income was derived from the recovery of uranium during the year (2015: Nil). 

NICKEL AND COPPER 
The Group is currently conducting exploration upon tenements considered prospective for nickel and copper. No 
income has been derived from the recovery of nickel or copper during the year (2015: Nil). 

SEGMENT INFORMATION 
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the reportable segments for the year ended 30 June 
2016 and 30 June 2015 are as follows:. 
 

Consolidated Gold Uranium Nickel / 
Copper Corporate Total 

2016 $ $ $ $ $ 
Revenue  

  
  

Other revenues from external customers - - - - - 
Total segment revenue - - - - - 

Segment result (729) (1,073,805) (101,830) (1,713,147) (2,889,511) 
Interest revenue - 71,332 - 96,124 167,456 
Depreciation - (53,900) - (13,703) (67,603) 

Assets and Liabilities      
Segment assets      
 Exploration expenditure 5,000,000 8,834,394 - - 13,834,394 
 Plant and equipment - 407,918 - 12,985 420,903 
 Cash and cash equivalents - 21,317 - 2,598,355 2,619,672 
 Other current assets - - - 29,052 29,052 
 Trade and other receivables - - - 84,903 84,903 
 Financial assets - 8,842,380  118,819 8,961,199 
Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position 5,000,000 18,106,009 - 2,844,114 25,950,123 

Segment liabilities      
 Trade and other payables - - - 401,198 401,198 
 Non-current borrowings - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000 
 Non-current provisions - 8,842,380 - - 8,842,380 
Total liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position - 15,842,380 - 401,198 16,243,578 
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NOTE 23: SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 
 
 

Consolidated Gold Uranium Nickel / 
Copper Corporate Total 

2015 $ $ $ $ $ 

Revenue  
  

  
Other revenues from external customers 60,028 - - - 60,028 
Total segment revenue 60,028 - - - 60,028 

Segment result 46,288 - (365,742) (782,325) (1,101,779) 
Interest revenue - - - 49,549 49,549 
Depreciation - - - (13,713) (13,713) 

Assets and Liabilities      
Segment assets      
 Exploration expenditure 5,000,000 - 80,000 - 5,080,000 
 Plant and equipment - - - 26,688 26,688 
 Cash and cash equivalents 3,830 - - 932,051 935,881 
 Other current assets - - - 219,687 219,687 
 Trade and other receivables 10,047 - - 26,072 36,119 
 Financial assets 7,089 - 1,571 83,872 92,532 
Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position 5,020,966 - 81,571 1,288,370 6,390,907 

Segment liabilities      
 Trade and other payables 3,509 - 4,819 87,564 95,892 
Total liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position 3,509 - 4,819 87,564 95,892 
 
NOTE 24: AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
  Consolidated 
  2016 

$ 
 2015 

$ 
The auditor of Boss Resources Limited is RSM Australia Partners. 
 
Amounts, received or due and receivable by RSM Australia Partners for: 

    

- Auditing or review services   43,500  31,500 
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NOTE 25: SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS             Consolidated 
                                                                                                                                                 2016                    2015 
                                                                                                                                                    $                        $ 
(a) Value of share based payments in the financial statements 
 
Share based payments for employees (reversed)/ expensed   310,054  - 
Cost of acquisition of exploration project expensed  154,900  - 
  464,954  - 
 
Set out below are the summaries of options and performance rights granted as share based payments: 
 
Options - 2016 

Grant 
Date 

Expiry 
Date 

Exer-
cise 
Price 

Balance 
01/07/15 

Granted 
during the 

year 

Exercised 
during 

the year 

Expired or 
Change due 

to 
Resigning 

Balance 
30/06/16 

Number 
vested 

and exer-
cisable 

30/07/12 10/08/15 0.11 9,500,000 - - 9,500,000 - - 
30/07/12 10/08/15 0.13 9,500,000 - - 9,500,000 - - 
30/07/12 10/08/15 0.15 9,500,000 - - 9,500,000 - - 
1/09/15 31/08/18 0.02 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 

   28,500,000 10,000,000 - 28,500,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 
Weighted average exercise 
price $0.13 $0.02 - $0.13 $0.02 $0.02 

 
Options - 2015 

Grant 
Date 

Expiry 
Date 

Exer-
cise 
Price 

Balance 
01/07/14 

Granted 
during the 

year 

Exercised 
during 

the year 

Expired or 
Change due 

to 
Resigning 

Balance 
30/06/15 

Number 
vested 

and exer-
cisable 

30/07/12 10/08/15 0.11 9,500,000 - - - 9,500,000 9,500,000 
30/07/12 10/08/15 0.13 9,500,000 - - - 9,500,000 9,500,000 
30/07/12 10/08/15 0.15 9,500,000 - - - 9,500,000 9,500,000 

   28,500,000 - - - 28,500,000 28,500,000 
Weighted average exercise 
price $0.13 - - - $0.13 $0.13 

 
Performance rights - 2016 

Grant 
Date 

Expiry 
Date 

Exer-
cise 
Price 

Balance 
01/07/15 

Granted 
during the 

year 

Exercised 
during 

the year 

Expired or 
Change due 

to 
Resigning 

Balance 
30/06/16 

Number 
vested 

and exer-
cisable 

17/11/15 17/11/20 0.00 - 39,999,999 - - 39,999,999 - 
   - 39,999,999 - - 39,999,999 - 

Weighted average exercise 
price - $0.00 - - $0.00 - 

 
There were no performance rights recognised in 2015. 
 
On 28 November 2014, shareholders approved the issue of 30,000,000 Performance Rights to Mr Wililams and 
9,999,999 Performance Rights to Dr Abzalov. These Performance Rights were not issued until 17 November 2015. 
These Performance Rights expire 5 years from their issue date on 17 November 2020. On meeting vesting 
conditions, Performance Rights will each convert into one ordinary share with no further consideration. 
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NOTE 25: SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 

The Performance Rights to be issued to Mr Williams will vest on meeting the following performance 
conditions before the expiry date: 

Tranche Milestone Number 

Tranche 1 
Performance 
Rights 

First Milestone means when the closing price of the Company's shares on ASX is 
at $0.075 for 20 consecutive ASX trading days. 10,000,000 

Tranche 2 
Performance 
Rights 

Second Milestone means announcement by the Company of a discovery of 
75,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or mineralisation of equivalent in 
ground value which the Company decides to mine in relation to a project.  

10,000,000 

Tranche 3 
Performance 
Rights 

Third Milestone means announcement by the Company of a discovery of 125,000t 
of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or mineralisation of equivalent in ground 
value which the Company decides to mine in relation to a project. 

10,000,000 

The Performance Rights to be issued to Dr Abzalov will vest on meeting the following performance 
conditions before the expiry date: 

Tranche Milestone Number 

Tranche 1 
Performance 
Rights 

First Milestone means when the closing price of the Company's Shares on ASX is 
at $0.085 for 20 consecutive ASX trading days. 3,333,333 

Tranche 2 
Performance 
Rights 

Second Milestone means announcement by the Company of a discovery of 
75,000t of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or mineralisation of equivalent in 
ground value which the Company decides to mine in relation to a project.  

3,333,333 

Tranche 3 
Performance 
Rights 

Third Milestone means announcement by the Company of a discovery of 125,000t 
of contained Ni at 2% (or equivalent) or mineralisation of equivalent in ground 
value which the Company decides to mine in relation to a project. 

3,333,333 

No expense was recognised for these performance rights for the year ended 30 June 2015 because the 
ability of the Company to delay issue effectively meant that there was no shared understanding of the 
terms and conditions of the performance rights during 2015. These performance rights were valued at 
their issue dates at $855,800 for Mr Williams and $284,333 for Dr Abzalov for a total value of $1,140,133. 
Expenses of $237,519 for Mr Williams and $72,535 for Dr Abzalov have been recognised during 2016 as 
these performance rights are expensed over the expected vesting periods. 
 
Performance rights were valued at the closing share price on the grant date, less discounts to reflect the effects of 
any market based vesting conditions as detailed in this table. The expected vesting period for each performance 
right for performance based vesting conditions is the period until expiry of the performance right. 
Recipient Mr Williams Mr Williams Mr 

Williams 
Dr Abzalov Dr Abzalov Dr Abzalov 

Tranche 1 2 3 1 2 3 
Grant date 17/11/15 17/11/15 17/11/15 17/11/15 17/11/15 17/11/15 
Expiry date 17/11/20 17/11/20 17/11/20 17/11/20 17/11/20 17/11/20 
Number of performance rights 
outstanding at 30 June 2016 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,333,333 3,333,333 3,333,333 

Share price at grant date ($) $0.029 $0.029 $0.029 $0.029 $0.029 $0.029 
Discount applied to share price 
at grant date to reflect market 
based vesting condition 

4.89% - - 5.85% - - 

Value per performance right ($) 0.02758 0.029 0.029 0.02730 0.029 0.029 
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NOTE 25: SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 
 
The assessed fair values of the options was determined using a binomial option pricing model or Black-Scholes 
model, taking into account the exercise price, term of option, the share price at grant date and expected price 
volatility of the underling share, expected yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. The inputs to 
the model used were: 
 
Grant date 1/09/15 
Expiry date 31/08/18 
Dividend yield (%) - 
Expected volatility (%) 115% 
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.76% 
Expected life of options (years) 3.00 
Underlying share price ($) 0.022 
Option exercise price ($) $0.02 
Value of option ($) 
Number of options issued 

$0.01549 
10,000,000 

 
(b) Weighted average remaining contractual life 
 
The weighted average remaining contractual life of share-based payment options that were outstanding as at 30 
June 2016 was 2.2 years (2015: 0.1 years). The weighted average remaining contractual life of performance rights 
that were outstanding as at 30 June 2016 was 4.39 years (2015 nil granted). 
 
 
(c) Weighted average fair value 
 
The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2016 was $0.01549 (2015: nil granted). The weighted 
average fair value of performance rights granted during 2016 was $0.0285 (2015 nil granted) 
 
 
NOTE 26: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Risk Management 
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, available for sale financial assets, trade and 
other receivables and trade and other payables.  
 
The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate, liquidity and credit risk in accordance 
with the Group’s financial risk management policy. The objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the Group’s 
financial targets whilst protecting future financial security.  
 
The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risks to which it is exposed. These 
include monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rates. 
Liquidity risk is monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.  
 
Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Board. The Board reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of the risks identified below, including for interest rate risk, credit allowances and 
cash flow forecast projections. 
 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset 
and financial liability are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements. 
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NOTE 26: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
The totals of each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the 
accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows: 
 
  Consolidated 
  Note 2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 
                  

Financial Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,619,672 935,881 
Trade and other receivables 5 84,903 36,119 
Other assets 8 8,890,966 55,660 
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value    
- listed investments 8 70,233 36,872 

Total Financial Assets  11,665,774 1,064,532 
    
Financial Liabilities    
Financial liabilities at amortised cost    
- trade and other payables 10 401,198 95,892 

Non-current borrowings 11 7,000,000 - 
Total Financial Liabilities  7,401,198 95,892 
 
Risk exposures and responses 

 
i. Interest Rate Risk 

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a 
result of changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rate for each class of 
financial assets and financial liabilities comprises: 

 

2016 
Floating 
Interest 

Rate 

Fixed Interest Rate Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

Total 
Weighted 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
1 Year or 

Less 
1 to 5 
Years 

 $ $ $ $ $  
Financial Assets       

Cash  1,517,506 1,100,000 - 2,166 2,619,672 1.54% 
Trade and other receivables  - - - 84,903 84,903 NA 
Other financial assets  - 8,889,380 - 71,819 8,961,199 1.00% 

       
Total Financial Assets 1,517,506 9,989,380 - 158,888 11,665,774  

       
Financial Liabilities       
Trade and other payables 7,362 - - 393,836 401,198 0.28% 
Non-current borrowings  7,000,000 - - 7,000,000 1.00% 

       
Total Financial Liabilities 7,362 7,000,000 - 393,836 7,401,198  
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NOTE 26: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 

2015 
Floating 
Interest 

Rate 

Fixed Interest Rate Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

Total 
Weighted 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
1 Year or 

Less 
1 to 5 
Years 

 $ $ $ $ $  
Financial Assets       
Cash  431,161 500,000 - 4,720 935,881 2.1% 
Trade and other receivables  - - - 36,119 36,119 NA 
Other financial assets  - 47,000 - 45,532 92,532 1.6% 

       
Total Financial Assets 431,161 547,000 - 86,371 1,064,532  

       
Financial Liabilities       
Trade and other payables 4,391 - - 91,501 95,892 0.7% 

       
Total Financial Liabilities 4,391 - - 91,501 95,892  
 

 
ii. Sensitivity Analysis 

At 30 June 2016, if interest rates had changed by -/+75 basis points from the weighted average rate for the year 
with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the Group would have been $33,746 lower/higher (2015 - 
$7,303 lower/higher) as a result of lower/higher interest income from cash and cash equivalents. 
 

iii. Liquidity Risk 
The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate access to funds 
are maintained.  
 

iv. Credit Risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to 
recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as 
disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The Group does not have 
any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under financial instruments.   

 
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value 
 
The financial instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position have been analysed and 
classified using a fair value hierarchy reflecting the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The 
fair value hierarchy consists of the following levels: 

– quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1); 
– inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and  
– inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 

 
2016 Level 1 

$ 
Level 2 

$ 
Level 3 

$ 
Total 

$ 
Financial assets:     
Available-for-sale financial assets:     
 Listed investments 70,233 - - 70,233 
     
2015     
Financial assets:     
Available-for-sale financial assets:     
 Listed investments 36,872 - - 36,872 
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NOTE 26: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
Fair Value Estimation 
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for 
disclosure purposes. All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group at the balance date are recorded at 
amounts approximating their carrying amount. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting 
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the last trade price. 
 
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values due to their short-term nature. 
 
NOTE 27: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES  
 
 2016  2015 
Statement of Financial Position $  $ 
Assets    
Current assets 2,712,310  1,177,810 
Non-current assets 14,395,432  5,192,130 
Total assets 17,107,742  6,369,940 

    
Liabilities    
Current liabilities 401,198  92,382 
 7,000,000  - 
Total liabilities 7,401,198  92,382 

    
Equity    
Issued capital 49,138,898  43,302,956 
Reserves 7,209,952  6,744,998 
Accumulated losses (46,642,306)  (43,770,396) 
Total equity 9,706,544  6,277,558 

    
Statement of Comprehensive income     
Loss for the year (2,871,910)  (916,621) 
Other comprehensive income  -  9,913 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,871,910)  (906,708) 
 
Guarantees 
 
Boss Resources Limited has not entered into any guarantees in the current or previous financial year in relation to 
the debts of its subsidiaries.  
 
Other Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Boss Resources Limited has no commitments to acquire property, plant and equipment and has no contingent 
liabilities other than those already disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 28: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Transactions with shareholders 
 
Kingslane Pty Ltd and associated entities (Kingslane) is a substantial shareholder in the Company and held 
46,579,002 (2015: 46,579,002) ordinary shares in the Company at 30 June 2015. Entities controlled by Kingslane 
received $44,000 (2015: $36,000) during the year for office rent. At 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, the Group had 
no creditor balances payable to Kingslane. 
 
Transactions with key management personnel 
 
Evan Cranston is a director of Konkera Corporate. Konkera Corporate received $113,667 (2015: $101,000) during 
the year for the provision of administration, bookkeeping and accounting services.  Current year secretarial fees of 
$29,000 (2015: $24,000) were paid to Malone Corporate Services and are included in the remuneration report for Ms 
Malone.  At 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, the Group had no creditor balances payable to Konkera Corporate and 
$3,000 payable to Malone Corporate Services. 
 
Peter Williams is a director of Newgenco Pty Ltd (Newgenco). Newgenco is the vendor of the Liakka tenement in 
Finland and the Skogtrask nr1 and nr 2 tenements in Sweden. 
 
20% of shares in Boss Energy are held by Wattle Energy Pty Ltd (Wattle). Wattle is controlled by Mr Grant Davey 
who was appointed as a director of the Company on 12 January 2016. Boss Energy is controlled by the Company. 
Wattle’s shareholding in Boss Energy is free carried until completion of a Bankable Feasibility Study for the 
Honeymoon Project (BFS) and Decision to Mine. 
 
All transactions with related parties have been entered into on normal commercial terms and conditions no more 
favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 
 
NOTE 29: ACQUISITION OF HONEYMOON PROJECT 
 
On 30 November 2015 (Completion), the Company completed the acquisition of the Honeymoon Uranium Project in 
South Australia. The assets of the Honeymoon project are all held by Boss Uranium Pty Ltd, (Boss Uranium) 
(formerly Uranium One Australia Pty Ltd) which was acquired on Completion of the Honeymoon acquisition. This 
acquisition occurred in several stages: 
 

• An initial site access fee of $200,000 was paid in April 2015, giving the Company the exclusive right to 
access the Honeymoon Project and conduct all its due diligence. This was recognised as a prepayment at 
30 June 2015 then expensed as an acquisition cost during the half year ended 31 December 2015. 

• Before Completion, Boss Uranium repaid $9,521,666 owing to the vendor with funds borrowed from Boss 
Resources Limited. This repayment was fulfilled with the Company paying $2,521,666 (the Closing Amount) 
in cash to the vendor and issuing $7,000,000 in promissory notes to the vendor. The terms of the 
promissory notes are detailed in note 11. 

• At Completion, the Company paid $1 and agreed to the following contingent payments to the vendor upon 
successful recommissioning of the Honeymoon Project: 
o $2 million payable in cash and/or shares upon the later of restart of the operations with commercial 

production or 30 November 2020. 
o 10% of the net operating cash flow of the Honeymoon Project payable annually up to a maximum of $3 

million in total. 
o These contingent payments have been classified as contingent liabilities and detailed in note 21. 

• At Completion the outstanding legally enforceable loan from the vendor to Boss Uranium of $157,959,780 
was assigned to the Company for $1. 

 
Payment of the Closing Amount was guaranteed by Carbine Resources Limited (Carbine Guarantee).  In 
consideration for the Carbine Guarantee, on 1 September 2015 the Company issued 10 million unquoted share 
options exercisable at $0.02 each by 31 August 2018. These options have been valued at$ 0.01549 each for a total 
value of $154,900, based on a Black-Scholes valuation with no dividends, a term of 3 years, an exercise price of 
$0.02, a grant date share price of $0.022, a volatility of 115% and a risk free interest rate of 1.76%pa. The full value 
of $154,900 was expensed immediately for these options. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
NOTE 29: ACQUISITION OF HONEYMOON PROJECT (CONTINUED) 

Details of the purchase consideration and the net assets acquired are as follows: 

 2016 
 $ 
Purchase consideration paid by Boss Resources Limited  
     Cash paid to acquire Boss Uranium Limited 1 
Total purchase consideration 1 

The fair value of assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows: 

  Fair Value 
  $ 
Cash and cash equivalents  25,698 
Property, plant and equipment  687,272 
Other financial assets  8,842,380 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure  8,834,394 
Trade and other payables  (9,547,363) 
Non-current provision   (8,842,380) 
Net assets acquired at  fair value  1 
 
The assets held for sale are plant and equipment acquired that the Group intended to sell as at the acquisition date, 
based on decisions made during the due diligence period, that were sold during the year.  
 
For the purpose of acquisition accounting, a legally enforceable loan of $157,959,780 owing by Boss Uranium, which 
was assigned by the vendor to the Company through a separate transaction, has been brought to account by the 
Company at the fair value of $1, which is its recoverable value and is not part of the acquisition consideration 
transferred by the Company. 
 
Boss Energy Pty Ltd (Boss Energy) owns and controls all shares in Boss Uranium. 20% of shares in Boss Energy 
are held by Wattle Energy Pty Ltd (Wattle). Although. Boss Energy is controlled by the Company, Wattle’s 
shareholding in Boss Energy is free carried until completion of a Bankable Feasibility Study for the Honeymoon 
Project (BFS) and Decision to Mine. On completion of the BFS, Boss may buy out Wattle’s shareholding at fair 
market value, where fair market value is determined by mutual agreement or external valuation. While Wattle 
remains a shareholder of Boss Energy, Wattle has a right by written notice to appoint one Director to the board of the 
Company in proportion to Wattle’s shareholding in Boss Energy. 
 
The fair value of the Wattle’s non-controlling free carried interest in Boss Uranium was zero at acquisition based on 
the negative net assets of Boss Uranium. 
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NOTE 30: DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 
 
On 20 January 2016, Gryphon Resources Ltd (Gryphon) acquired control and 51% shareholdings in Askia Gold Pty 
Ltd, Boss Minerals Pty Ltd, Boss Gold SARL and Boss Minerals SARL (Farmed out subsidiaries) pursuant to a Farm 
out agreement executed on 4 July 2014. Although the Group has retained 49% shareholdings in the subsidiaries, the 
nature of Gryphon's control under the Farm out agreement prevents the Group's interests in the subsidiaries from 
meeting recognition criteria for investments in associates or joint ventures. Under this Farm out agreement, the 
Group has presently retained a free carried interest in the mineral exploration assets of the Farmed out subsidiaries. 
This free carried interest in the mineral exploration assets of the Farmed out subsidiaries is the Gold exploration 
asset detailed in note 9. As these subsidiaries were responsible for all operations in Burkina Faso, together they 
represented the Gold segment presented in note 23. The Farmed out subsidiaries are not recognised as a 
discontinued operation because the retention of the capitalised mineral exploration interest for the Burkina Faso 
assets prevents the Farmed out subsidiaries from meeting the recognition criteria for a discontinued operation. 
 

 20 January 
2016  

Book values of net assets over which control was lost $  

Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 318  
Trade and other receivables 12,896  
Total current assets 13,214  
   
Other financial assets 7,223  
Total non-current assets 7,223  
Total Assets 20,437  

   
Liabilities   
Trade and other payables 3,563  
Total current liabilities 3,563  
Total liabilities 3,563  

   
Net assets derecognised 16,874  
   
Consideration received -  
Loss during period to date of disposal 729  
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 16,874  

   
Foreign currency translation reserve movement    
Opening balance at 1 July 2015 (427,767)  
Movement to date of disposal 146  
Foreign currency translation reserve balance reclassified to accumulated 
losses on loss of control of Farmed out subsidiaries 427,621  

 
The loss on disposal of the subsidiaries is included in the balance of Other expenses in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income. 
 
The foreign currency translation reserve balance of ($427,767) has been reclassified to accumulated losses on loss 
of control of the Farmed out subsidiaries. 
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2016 
 
 
NOTE 31: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE 
 

– On 25 August 2016, the Company issued 16,666,667 ordinary shares and 18,000,000 performance rights to 
the non-executive chairman Mr Mark Hohnen following shareholder approval on 16 August 2016. 

 
Other than disclosed above, between the end of the financial year and the date of this report there are no items, 
transactions or events of a material or unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly, the 
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years that require disclosure. 
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Directors’ Declaration 
 
In the Directors' opinion: 
  

• the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting 
Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; 
 

• the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements; 
  

• the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial 
position as at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and 
  

• there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable. 
 

The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
On behalf of the Directors 
 

 

 

Evan Cranston 
Corporate Director 

 

DATED at PERTH this 30th day of September 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

BOSS RESOURCES LIMITED 

Report on the financial report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Boss Resources Limited, which comprises the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2016, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the 
company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with 
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 



Independence  

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We 
confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the 
directors of Boss Resources Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this 
auditor's report.  

Opinion  

In our opinion: 

(a) the financial report of Boss Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:  

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its 
performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and 

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1. 

Report on the remuneration report  

We have audited the Remuneration Report contained within the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2016.  
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in 
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.    

Opinion 

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Boss Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016 complies 
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS 

Perth, WA DAVID WALL 
Dated: 30 September 2016  Partner 
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